
STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD
AGENDA

Venue: The Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, 
Catherine Sreet, Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ 

Date: Wednesday, 19th February, 2020
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on  17 December 2019 1 - 4

4. Nuclear Decommissioning Authority Consultation on the Draft 
Business Plan 2020-2023. 

5 - 6

5. Nuclear Decommissioning Authority draft Local Economic and 
Social Impact Strategy 2020 to 2026 consultation 

7 - 20

6. Nuclear Projects - Verbal Update 

7. Exempt Information 

The Chair to move:
That under Section 100 (a) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item on the grounds that, if they were present, there 
could be disclosed to them exempt information as defined in the 
relevant paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Act.  

8. Planning - Verbal Update 

9. Date and Time of Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board will 
be held on Tuesday 28 April 2020 at 2:00pm in the Bainbridge 
Room, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, Whitehaven.

Public Document Pack



Membership: Councillors Steven Morgan (Chair), Felicity Wilson (Deputy 
Chair), David Banks, Sean Cullen, Gemma Dinsdale, David Moore and 
Sam Pollen

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 17 DECEMBER 2019

Present: Councillors Steven Morgan, in the Chair; Felicity Wilson, David Banks, 
David Moore and Sam Pollen.

Officers: Pat Graham (Chief Executive), Steve Smith (Interim Nuclear Projects 
Manager), Robert Ward (Nuclear Sector Development Manager), Mitchell 
McCombe (Nuclear Sector Development Officer), Heather Morrison (Principal 
Planning Officer) and Clive Willoughby (Democratic Services Officer).

SN 19/22 Apologies for Absence 

No apologies for absence were received.

SN 19/23 Declarations of Interest 

Councillors Dave Banks and Sam Pollen declared a personal interest in the 
agenda items due to being employed by Sellafield Limited.

Steven Morgan declared a personal interest in the agenda items due to having 
worked in the nuclear industry and being on the Hinckley Point Board.

SN 19/24 Minutes of the Meeting held on  12 August 2019 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 August 2019 be signed 
by the Chair as a correct record.

SN 19/25 NDA and Sellafield Integrated Waste Management Strategies 

Matt Buckley and Kelly Anderson (Nuclear Decommissioning Authority) 
presented an overview of the NDA and Sellafield Integrated Waste Management 
Strategies, which applied to all the NDA estate.

It was noted that the Strategy was issued in October 2019.

During the discussion that followed, members asked how the targets were to be 
measured,
If a plan for the entire Sellafield site in the future was available, if the site was 
on track with its current missions and regarding storage space on site.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



The presenters were thanked for their attendance and presentation.

RESOLVED:- that the presentation on the NDA and Sellafield Integrated Waste 
Management Strategies be received. 

SN 19/26 Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA) Update: Business Plan 2020-
2023 and Strategy 4 

Kelly Anderson (Nuclear Decommissioning Authority) presented on the NDA 
Business Plan to members, highlighting that this was a requirement of the 
Energy Act and was a rolling three year plan that was published annually. The 
Plan was due to be published on 23 December 2019 with statutory consultation 
taking place until 17 February 2020. 

This was followed by the Strategy 4 this was also a requirement of the Energy 
Act and published every five years. Strategy 4 was due to be published on 1 April 
2021 with statutory consultation taking place between 17 August 2020 and 8 
November 2020. Pre-engagement would begin in early 2020.

A bespoke consultation plan for Copeland would be produced including updates 
to this Board, Member briefings, social media and Site Stakeholder Groups.

Kelly Anderson was thanked for her presentation. 

RESOLVED:- that the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA) Update: 
Business Plan 2020-2023 and Strategy 4 presentation be received.  

SN 19/27 Nuclear Projects Update 

The Nuclear Programmes and Projects Manager provided the Board with an 
update on the Moorside Project, Advanced Nuclear Technologies, Advanced 
Modular Reactors (AMRs), the New Nuclear Local Authorities Group (NNLAG) 
and Geological Disposal Facility (GDF).

RESOLVED:- that 
a) update be noted, and
b) further officer involvement in supporting Phase 1 of the UK Small Modular 

Reactors project be endorsed.  

(Note: Councillor David Moore left the meeting at this point at  3:40pm)

Page 2



SN 19/28 Exempt Information 

RESOLVED – that the press and public be excluded for the remaining items of 
business in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

SN 19/29 Planning Update 

The Principal Planning Officer provided the Board with a verbal update of 
developments at Sellafield Limited.

(Note: Councillor Sam Pollen left the meeting during this item at 4:00pm)

RESOLVED:- That the Update be noted.

SN 19/30 Date and Time of Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board will be held on 
Wednesday 19 February 2020 at 2:00pm, in the Bainbridge Room, The Copeland 
Centre, Whitehaven.

The Meeting closed at 4.10 pm 

Chair

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 190220

Nuclear Decommissioning Authority Consultation on the Draft Business 
Plan 2020-2023.

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
REPORT AUTHOR: Mitchell McCombe, Nuclear Sector Development 
Officer

Summary:

This report presents the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority’s (“the 
NDA”) draft Business Plan covering the period 2020-2023, to be agreed by 
the Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board.

Recommendation:

That Members of the Board:

1. Review the proposed consultation response and provide final 
comments to be incorporated by no later than 21st February;

2. Delegate authority to the Chair of the Board in cooperation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Nuclear & Corporate Services and Chief Executive 
Officer to approve the final submission of the consultation response.

1. Introduction

1.1. The NDA is mandated under the Energy Act of 2004 to prepare 
annual plans for each financial year which outlines the work being 
carried out towards decommissioning of its sites and allocated 
funding.

1.2. The draft Business Plan for 2020-2023 was published for public 
consultation on the 23rd December 2019 and will close on the 14th 
February 2020. The Council recognises that the consultation period 
was delayed as a result of the early general election. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



1.3. To take into account the Council’s democratic procedures, the NDA 
has granted the Council an extension until the 21st February 2020 
for Officers to feed Members final comments into the response.

1.4. The NDA has stated that it is “happy to receive comments on any 
aspects of [the] Draft Business Plan and these will be considered 
where appropriate. When considering responses to this 
consultation, the NDA will give greater weight to responses that are 
based on argument and evidence, rather than simple expressions 
of support or opposition”. 

1.5. Members can find a copy of the draft Business Plan here:

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/nuclear-
decommissioning-authority-draft-business-plan-2020-to-2023 

2. Principles of the Draft Consultation Response

2.1. The draft response is based on the accepted knowledge and 
understanding that Copeland is the host community for the vast 
majority of the UK’s higher level nuclear/radioactive waste and 
spent fuels and will continue to be so for multiple future decades. 
Being the host of the most complex and challenging NDA legacy site 
for circa 70 years, we remain convinced that our views should be 
taken seriously by the NDA.

2.2. The comments on the 2020 to 2023 Plan are formed around the 
Council’s Nuclear Position Statements which were revised in 2019. 

3. Summary and Next Steps

3.1. A draft consultation response has been developed by Officers and 
was sent out for comment on 23rd January 2020. Further comments 
will be welcomed at the meeting after which the response will be 
finalised and submitted to the NDA Business Planning Team 
following approval from the Chair of the Board, Portfolio Holder for 
Nuclear and Corporate Services and the Chief Executive Officer. 

3.2. The final Business Plan for 2020-2023 will be published in the new 
financial year. 

Page 6

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/nuclear-decommissioning-authority-draft-business-plan-2020-to-2023
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/nuclear-decommissioning-authority-draft-business-plan-2020-to-2023


STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 190220

Nuclear Decommissioning Authority draft Local Economic and Social 
Impact Strategy 2020 to 2026 consultation

LEAD OFFICER:       Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward, Nuclear Sector Development Manager

Summary:

This report makes members aware of the ongoing consultation on the 
Nuclear Decommissioning Authority’s draft Local Economic and Social 
Impact Strategy 2020 to 2026 (“the Strategy”).

Recommendation:

That members of the Board:

1. Note the information in this paper;

2. Delegate authority to the Chair of the Board in cooperation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and Chief Executive Officer to develop 
and submit a response to the consultation on behalf of the Council.

1. Introduction

1.1. The NDA has a duty under the Energy Act of 2004 to support 
activities that deliver social, economic or environmental benefit to 
communities living near designated installations (sites); and to 
ensure the development and maintenance of a skilled workforce to 
undertake nuclear decommissioning in the UK.

1.2. The consultation draft is available online via the following link, and 
papers copies will be made available to members on request:

www.gov.uk/government/consultations/nda-local-economic-and-
social-impact-strategy-2020-to-2026-draft-for-consultation 

1.3. The deadline for response to the consultation is Friday 13th March.

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

http://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/nda-local-economic-and-social-impact-strategy-2020-to-2026-draft-for-consultation
http://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/nda-local-economic-and-social-impact-strategy-2020-to-2026-draft-for-consultation


2. Background

2.1. The publication of the draft Strategy is in response to 
Recommendation 6 of the 65th Public Accounts Committee Report 
(“the PAC Report”) on NDA: Progress on Risk Reduction at Sellafield:

“We are not convinced that the NDA is achieving the wider 
economic benefits that would help justify the vast amounts of 
public investment at Sellafield.”

Recommendation 6: The NDA should, within 12 months, 
strengthen and publish its socio-economic strategy, outlining the 
opportunities for the wider economy and how it will realise those 
opportunities.”

2.2. The Council wrote to the Chair of the PAC in response to 
Recommendation 6 of the Report as follows:

“It is clear that collectively the value of Sellafield has not been 
extracted in support of a sustainable West Cumbrian economy. The 
2017 Oxford Economics report identified the risks to Copeland 
economy should the Sellafield Transformation be unsuccessful. The 
Council agrees with The Committee report that social and economic 
value from the NDA estate is not currently being realised. BEIS, the 
NDA and Sellafield Ltd must support and facilitate the opportunity 
presented by the Sellafield Transformation to maximise the 
economic impact of Sellafield as a catalyst for the future economy 
of Copeland and UK PLC. The vires of each of those organisations 
should be challenged where they do not enable this …

[The Sellafield] social impact strategy that was developed in 
collaboration with the local community … is well-aligned to the 
Council corporate strategy and therefore creates a strong enough 
position from which to create strong social impact in Copeland. This 
is complementary to the emerging economic Transformation Plan 
and the NDA should use this as a model or foundation to develop 
an estate-wide plan. This should not be delayed by the activities 
required under recommendation 6, as the current strategy is 

Page 8



considered adequate as a starting point. In light of the changes 
following the last shear at ThORP, we are concerned that more 
strategy and no delivery would be at the expense of the Copeland 
community.”

2.3. Throughout 2019, the NDA held a number of engagement sessions 
around the country including with members of the Nuclear Legacy 
Advisory Forum (NuLeAF) to inform the development of the draft 
Strategy. The Council’s Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and Nuclear 
Officers attended these sessions.

2.4. There are a number of mechanisms by which the Council holds the 
NDA to account regarding its socio economic performance, 
including:

 By responding to NDA Business Plan consultations annually
 By inputting to the Strategy 4 consultation process throughout 

2020
 By holding the NDA to account through the annual Mission 

Progress Report
 At the West Cumbria Sites Stakeholder Group and its subgroup 

meetings
 Through officer involvement in NDA Strategy Theme Overview 

Groups
 Through membership of NuLeAF

3. Council Position

3.1. Informed by SNEB, the Council maintains a position on the 
industry’s socio-economic performance with particular reference 
to the activities of the NDA Group, and this will be used as the basis 
for the Council’s response to the consultation.

3.2. The relevant position statements are appended to this report for 
reference.

Page 9



4. Next Steps

4.1. A draft consultation response will be developed by officers and 
shared with members of the Board for comment in advance of the 
consultation deadline.

4.2. Members of the Board are asked to delegate authority to the Chair 
of the Board in cooperation with the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear 
and Chief Executive Officer to develop and submit a response to the 
consultation on behalf of the Council.

4.3. The Council will also contribute to the NuLeAF response to the 
consultation.

APPENDIX A – Extracts from Council Nuclear Position Statements

Page 10



Appendix A – Extracts from Council Nuclear Position Statements

To accompany corresponding SNEB Paper 200219

3. Context: Copeland and the Nuclear Sector

3.1. Given the Council’s position as a nuclear local authority, it is our duty to 
properly represent the interests of Copeland’s communities on matters 
concerning the nuclear sector, and to act in the best interests of the social, 
environmental and economic prosperity of the Borough.

3.2. Copeland’s communities have a long history of engagement with the 
nuclear sector dating back to the 1940s. The Borough is home to a range 
of nationally significant facilities related to the sector, including;

 The Sellafield site including Windscale and Calder Hall;
 The headquarters of the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA);
 The national Low Level Waste Repository;
 The Moorside site, identified as one of only 8 sites in the UK for a new 

nuclear power station;
 The central laboratory of the National Nuclear Laboratory (NNL);
 A strong regional supply chain cluster of nuclear-literate engineering, 

manufacturing and professional services businesses;
 The Manchester University Dalton Nuclear Institute, which provides 

high-end research in radiation science and nuclear decommissioning.

3.3. Copeland is recognised as being at the UK Centre of Nuclear Excellence 
(CoNE) thanks to its renowned expertise covering all aspects of the 
nuclear fuel cycle, including many of the leading names in the nuclear 
supply chain, leading research establishments, strategic sites of national 
importance, nationally-recognised sector training provision, and a 
workforce with an unrivalled breadth of nuclear capability, experience 
and skills.

3.4. The 2017 Oxford Economics Report on The Economic Impact of Sellafield 
shows that Copeland’s economy is heavily dependent upon Sellafield Ltd 
and the associated supply chain, demonstrating many positive 

Page 11



implications but also a lack of local economic resilience and diversity. In 
summary:

 Sellafield receives approximately £2Bn of public funding per year;
 For every £1 of public sector funding spent at Sellafield, another 

£1.58 is generated in the rest of the economy;
 Sellafield sustains 55% of Copeland’s economy and 55% of all jobs;
 57% of Sellafield Ltd supply chain spend is with companies in 

Copeland (£625m per year);
 Sellafield Ltd provides high productivity jobs, with Gross Value Added 

per job of £65,000, 41% higher than UK Average;
 Of the 43,800 jobs sustained by Sellafield, 21,090 are in Copeland. 

Copeland-based employees account for 56% (£264m) of Sellafield 
Ltd’s annual wage bill;

 Every job at Sellafield sustains 2.8 more in the economy.

3.5. Over coming years, a number of significant changes will occur as 
Sellafield’s focus shifts from reprocessing and legacy retrievals to 
decommissioning and environmental remediation. This transformation is 
likely to have economic, spatial and social implications for Copeland’s 
communities, the workforce and the supply chain. This provides an 
additional focus and energy to the need for collaborative effort on a range 
of work streams and interventions over and above those currently within 
the Sellafield Ltd strategy, to offset the potential negative impact on the 
local economy and generate a broader economic base through innovation 
and growth.

4. Strategic Ambitions for Copeland

4.2. By articulating Copeland’s place-leadership in delivering the Nuclear 
Sector Deal and Industrial Strategy, we will shine a light on the untapped 
opportunity to extract greater value from the investment made at 
Sellafield, which does not sit in isolation from the rest of the local 
ecosystem of community, infrastructure, supply chain, knowledge, skills 
and assets. This will reinforce the “golden thread” between Copeland, as 
the Centre of Nuclear Excellence, and the national agenda.

Page 12



Our approach to commercialisation of the sector is focused on:

1. Delivering the mission safer, sooner and cheaper: holding the NDA 
and Sellafield to account in meeting the Sector Deal targets for 
cheaper delivery of the long term decommissioning programme and 
continued safe and secure management of radioactive waste.

2. Inward investment and business growth: developing home-grown 
businesses and entrepreneurs; attracting and retaining businesses, 
investors and young people.

3. Economic diversification and export opportunities: extracting value 
from local sites/assets/facilities/workforce and developing new 
opportunities based on  capability/IP developed in delivering the 
Sellafield mission.

4. New Missions: Supporting new nuclear missions in the nation’s 
interests: nuclear new build, advanced reactor development and 
potential plutonium re-use.

5. Global advisory role: developing our position as expert advisor to the 
global nuclear industry through existing contracts and NDA/Sellafield 
Ltd’s role in providing technical expertise to international partners.

5. Sector-wide Principles

Copeland Borough Council expects the nuclear sector to:

Community

 Be a caring and responsible neighbour in respect of the social license to 
operate, granted by the community;

 Prioritise and continue to maintain the highest levels of safety and 
security whilst carrying out operations in the Borough to ensure the 
protection of the workforce and local communities;

 Establish preferential outcomes for our communities and the local 
environment and comply with current and future regulatory 
requirements, recognising the intergenerational timescales of some of 
the work-streams in question.

Environment

Page 13



 Comply with international regulations, standards, guidance and best 
practice, such as UN Sustainable Development Goals;

 Contribute to meaningful action against climate change and ecological 
harm;

 Reduce pressure on existing transport infrastructure and reduce carbon 
footprint by maximising the use of sustainable travel;

 Ensure that new development proposals accord with the Council’s 
planning policies and contribute to growth ambitions for the borough;

 Where necessary, contribute to the development of new physical and 
social infrastructure provision to mitigate the impacts of development 
proposals;

 Recognise the role of the Council as local planning authority and enter 
into discussions regarding development proposals very-early in the 
development process;

 Provide practical solutions to waste 
treatment/storage/management/disposal in line with local and national 
policy and regulatory requirements, utilising the waste hierarchy and 
integrated waste management approach to optimise resource usage;

 Protect, preserve and, where possible, enhance the natural resources of 
the Borough.

Page 14



Economy

 Recognise the Council’s and the wider Copeland community’s aspirations 
to secure sustainable incomes, resilient economies and a thriving 
community;

 Contribute to the development of a local, diverse and future-facing 
commercial and robust supply chain;

 Engage local suppliers and support the development of the local SME 
base;

 Employ local people and support access to employment in all its forms;
 Contribute to the diversification and future-proofing of the local skill base 

through long term investment in skills and supporting access to 
employment;

 Actively encourage inward investment into the Borough through 
suppliers;

 Assist the diversification of the local economy through supporting the 
commercialisation of new technologies into new markets and new 
sectors.

Social Value

 Deliver social and economic benefits to the wider community as a key 
priority and responsibility;

 Ensure payment of the Voluntary Living Wage directly, as well as indirectly 
through the supply chain;

 Deliver societal impact aligned to the needs of the Borough, in line with 
the principles of the collaborative Social Impact Framework:

1. Sustainable Incomes: Inspiring skills, education and personal 
development activities improve access to sustainable incomes.

2. Resilient Economies: Resilient, inclusive and growing local 
economies creating and securing new opportunities.

3. Thriving Communities: Social impact activities sustain and enhance 
community assets and address community needs.

 Recognise and respond to the economic challenge and opportunity of the 
Sellafield Transformation Programme.

Page 15



Nuclear Decommissioning Authority

5.2. The Council expects the NDA to meet its Energy Act obligations to support 
activities that   deliver social, economic or environmental benefit to 
communities living near designated installations; and to ensure the 
development and maintenance of a skilled workforce to undertake nuclear 
decommissioning in the UK.

5.3. The Council expects to be engaged as a key stakeholder in development 
of the NDA’s Business Plan and Strategies. The Council will hold the NDA 
to account by providing responses to the NDA Business Plan, Strategy IV 
Consultation(s) and Mission Progress Report.

5.4. Given the complex nature of the Sellafield Site and the national 
significance of the mission, it is concerning that the Public Accounts 
Committee considers that oversight of Sellafield activities has been poor. 
Copeland and its communities will be host to the Sellafield site for the 
next century and beyond, so proper and adequate oversight of 
performance is key in maintaining stakeholder and public support for the 
national service that Copeland provides. Indeed, many stakeholders 
including the council expect this to be provided by those responsible 
organisations in which we place our trust on behalf of Copeland’s 
communities. We expect NDA to address the Committee‘s 
recommendation to strengthen oversight of Sellafield activities and 
communicate how this has been implemented. 

5.5. However, it is acknowledged that Sellafield has some of the most complex 
nuclear legacy challenges in the world. This oversight should be a support 
to the mission and not an impediment to progress. Oversight, without the 
presence of requisite capability, at any level within UKGI, BEIS, NDA, SL or 
the local authority, will result in poor value to the taxpayer.

5.6. The Council considers that, under the banner of “One NDA”, there is a 
group leadership requirement on the NDA to publish a Transport Strategy 
covering movement of people and materials. This will provide a valuable 
“golden thread” to the equivalent Transport and Movement Strategies of 
the NDA’s subsidiaries and delivery organisation. Local communities and 
local authorities must be consulted in the development of this strategy.

Page 16



5.7. The Council expects that NDA will target socio-economic spending 
decisions against identified local priorities, in line with the local 
community’s vision.

Spent Fuel and Nuclear Materials (SF & NM)

5.8. The Council recognises that until such a time as a Geological Disposal 
Facility, other long-term management solution or alternative use is 
available, Spent Fuel and Nuclear Materials must be stored safely and 
securely. Where this results in consolidated storage at Sellafield, the 
Council expects the NDA and SF & NM producers to mitigate any negative 
consequences for Copeland’s communities and the environment. The 
positive social and economic benefits associated with such developments 
will be proportionate to the critical national service that the Borough 
continues to provide.

5.9. Where the Borough is identified as the recipient location for the 
management or storage of Spent Fuels or Nuclear Materials in the 
nation’s interest, the Council expects that a comprehensive approach will 
be developed for these receipts, so that arrangements for planning 
authority accountabilities, community acceptance and good governance 
can be properly discharged, and the impacts on the delivery of the wider 
Sellafield mission can be understood.

5.10. The Council supports the re-use of plutonium as a key UK asset and 
endorses the Government-led approach to identify proposals to develop 
facilities for the reuse of plutonium in a safe and economically 
advantageous way. The Council’s view is that such facilities should be 
developed close to the plutonium store in Copeland.

5.11. As the taxpayer is due to commit £1bn to a new repackaging facility for 
this material, we are assured that the UK’s plutonium stockpile will be 
stored safely and securely. However, the longevity of the plutonium 
storage in the absence of a decision about disposition is something that 
we expect the host community to be engaged on.

The Sellafield Site

Page 17



5.12. The level of investment at Sellafield is a reflection of the value of the 
service that Sellafield provides to society and the world-leading capability 
developed at Sellafield to overcome the uniquely complex 
decommissioning challenges on the site. UK government, the NDA and 
Sellafield Ltd must appreciate the value of the service that Copeland’s 
community provides to the nation, as the host of the Sellafield site.

5.13. The Council expects that the NDA and Sellafield Ltd will engage closely 
with us and our partners to maximise UK government’s investment at 
Sellafield by extraction of social and economic value from the site, hence 
also meeting the NDA’s obligations under the Energy Act 2004. This 
includes ensuring that UK Government continues to fund completion of 
the site’s mission beyond the High Hazard and Risk Reduction programme 
and enabling new missions on the site, where this is appropriate and 
aligns with the community’s aspirations.

5.14. Over time, officers and elected representatives of Copeland Borough 
Council have developed a level of technical and contextual knowledge and 
understanding of the nuclear sector, beyond that which would be 
expected of any local authority. We trust that this is apparent through our 
ongoing engagement with NDA colleagues. In light of this, we expect that 
in future the NDA and its delivery organisations will afford Copeland 
Borough Council the same level of trust, transparency and respect that 
they would any other competent regulator, when considering future 
plans for consolidation of radioactive waste, spent fuels and nuclear 
materials on the Sellafield site.

5.15. The Sellafield site is extremely congested, meaning that land use on the 
site must be optimised in terms of contribution to achieving the mission 
or enabling new missions. There should be in place a strategy regarding 
relocation of non-nuclear workers and activities offsite, which has the 
potential to create economic benefit elsewhere in Copeland.

5.16. The Council expects that Sellafield Ltd and its supply chain partners will 
target investment decisions against identified local priorities based on the 
programme framework that has been collaboratively built around six 

Page 18



identified Social Impact Themes, aligned to the Sellafield Ltd Social Impact 
Strategy.

5.17. The Council expects the NDA and Sellafield Ltd to actively ensure that land 
on the Sellafield site is made available for beneficial reuse, on timescales 
that are appropriate to the potential opportunities on the horizon. For 
example, the accelerated clearance of the Calder Hall site could free up 
land for future nuclear missions.

Sellafield Ltd Transformation Programme

5.18. The Council recognises that following the completion of THORP and 
Magnox reprocessing by 2020, Sellafield’s mission will refocus on 
broadfront decommissioning, interim storage of wastes and 
environmental remediation.

5.19. The Transformation is an opportunity the NDA and Sellafield Ltd to work 
with partners to commercialise on taxpayer-funded capability, knowledge 
and skills developed in delivering the Sellafield mission, and to prepare 
the nuclear supply chain, and the wider communities that rely upon 
Sellafield’s current economic footprint, to become more diverse and 
resilient.

5.20. Given the dominance of the local economy by Sellafield Ltd, failure to 
capitalise on the investment in and value of Sellafield will have a 
devastating impact for Copeland’s economy. As representative of the 
communities most likely to be negatively impacted by the 
Transformation, the Council expects to be engaged in collaborative 
working on local initiatives to complement the local industrial strategy 
and to turn this potential threat into opportunity.

5.21. The Council is deeply concerned about the adequacy of oversight and 
enablement of the Sellafield Transformation programme, through which 
some of the technological and social developments required to ensure 
extraction of economic value from Sellafield for the taxpayer will occur.

5.22. The Council expects the NDA and Sellafield Ltd to work with the Council 
and other partners to deliver a Transformation programme, which:

Page 19



 Continues to develop world-leading nuclear supply chain capability in 
waste management and decommissioning;

 Delivers the Sellafield mission safer, faster and cheaper through 
adoption of skills, ideas and technologies from other sectors;

 Informs preferential environmental, accommodation and transport 
strategies for the site, in line with the Council’s priorities;

 Develops a corporate culture/mindset that:
o develops the behaviours required to underpin an economic 

model that attracts and retains talented professionals;
o addresses concerns over equality, diversity and inclusion in the 

workforce and supply chain;
o develops a supply chain model that promotes diversity of 

opportunity for new and existing 
businesses/entrepreneurs/innovators;

 Contributes to Nuclear Sector Deal targets around cost reduction of 
decommissioning, enabling access to global export markets, and 
diversity.

Skills

5.23. Copeland’s priorities in relation to people and skills are:

 To retain and develop the highly-skilled and experienced nuclear 
workforce in Copeland;

 To work with our large employers and growing supply chains in 
pushing for advancement of apprenticeship and graduate programmes 
that give people the right skills in the right place;

 To match the skills pipeline to the current and future skills demand of 
the economy, including but not limited to the needs of Sellafield and 
the potential skills requirement to support nuclear new build.

 To develop people to adapt to the rapidly changing nature of 
employment practices and the future of work, and to develop 
adaptable and transferable skills that can be utilised from sector to 
sector.

Page 20


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on  17 December 2019
	4 Nuclear Decommissioning Authority Consultation on the Draft Business Plan 2020-2023.
	5 Nuclear Decommissioning Authority draft Local Economic and Social Impact Strategy 2020 to 2026 consultation
	APPENDIX A - Position Statement Extracts


